

AMENDED CHARTER RESOLUTION
OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE PARK, TO
AMEND ARTICLE III, “MAYOR AND COUNCIL”, §C3-5, “ELECTION” AND
§C3-6, “VACANCIES”, AND ARTICLE IV, “VOTING AND ELECTIONS, §C4-5,
“PETITIONS FOR CANDIDACY; EMPLOYEES” AND §C4-6, “RUNOFF
ELECTIONS”, TO REQUIRE THAT ON OR BEFORE MARCH 31 OF A
GENERAL ELECTION YEAR (EXCEPT IN 2021, WHEN THE DATE IS ON OR
BEFORE MAY 31), THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL WILL SET BY MOTION
THE DATE IN NOVEMBER FOR THE GENERAL ELECTION, THAT IF THE
MAYOR AND COUNCIL FAIL TO SET THE ELECTION DATE, THE
GENERAL ELECTION WILL BE HELD ON THE FIRST TUESDAY
FOLLOWING THE FIRST MONDAY IN NOVEMBER, THAT WITHDRAWAL
AS A CANDIDATE FOR A VACANCY MUST BE FILED NO LATER THAN
NOON ON THE 20TH CALENDAR DAY BEFORE THE ELECTION, TO
ALLOW MORE FLEXIBILITY IN SETTING THE DATE OF ANY RUN-OFF
ELECTION WITHIN A 45 DAY TIME AND TO CHANGE CERTAIN FILING
DEADLINES TO ACCOMMODATE THE ADDITIONAL TIME REQUIRED TO
VOTE BY MAIL AND MAKE CONFORMING CHANGES

A Charter Resolution of the Mayor and Council of the City of College Park, adopted pursuant to the authority of Article XI-E of the Constitution of Maryland and §4-301 *et seq.*, Local Government Article, Annotated Code of Maryland, as amended.

WHEREAS, §C3-5, “Election” currently requires that the general election for City elective offices is the first Tuesday following the first Monday in November; and

WHEREAS, § C4-6, “Runoff elections” currently requires that any run-off election for City elective offices must occur on the 4th Tuesday after the election; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council have determined that it is in the public interest to promote voter convenience and participation by allowing flexibility in setting the date for the general election and run-off elections; and

CAPS : Indicate matter added to existing law.

[Brackets] : Indicate matter deleted from law.

Asterisks * * * : Indicate matter remaining unchanged in existing law but not set forth in Resolution.

CAPS :Indicate matter added in amendment

[Brackets] :Indicate matter deleted in amendment

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council have determined that it is in the public interest to promote voter convenience and participation by changing certain time frames for filing of candidate petitions to accommodate voting by mail; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council wish to make provision for determining the appropriate date for the election in any election year by a vote taken on or before March 31 in the election year (except in 2021, when it will be set on or before May 31, 2021), with the default election date of the first Tuesday following the first Monday in November in the event the election date is not set, allowing more flexibility in setting the date of any run-off election, and changing filing deadlines for candidate petitions to accommodate voting by mail.

Section 1. NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the City of College Park that Article III, “Mayor and Council”, §C3-5, “Election” be repealed, re-enacted and amended to read as follows:

§ C3-5 Election.

The qualified voters of the City shall elect a Mayor to serve a term of two years. The voters within each district shall elect two Councilpersons for their respective districts, each to serve the term of two years. ~~The election for Mayor and Councilpersons shall be conducted on~~ ON OR BEFORE MARCH 31 OF A GENERAL ELECTION YEAR, THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL MAY BY MOTION SET THE DATE IN NOVEMBER FOR THE GENERAL ELECTION, ON A DATE THAT IS NOT A CITY, STATE, COUNTY OR FEDERAL ELECTION DAY OR HOLIDAY. IF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL FAIL TO SET THE ELECTION DATE BY MARCH 31, THE GENERAL ELECTION SHALL BE HELD ON the first Tuesday following the first Monday in November. FOR THE 2021 GENERAL ELECTION ONLY, THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL MAY BY MOTION SET THE DATE ON OR BEFORE MAY 31, 2021.

Section 2. BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the City of College Park that Article III, “Mayor and Council”, §C3-6, “Vacancies” be repealed, re-enacted and amended to read as follows:

§ C3-6 Vacancies.

A. * * * *

B. Election or appointment to fill vacancies.

(1) – (2) * * * *

(3) Vacancy in office of Mayor or Council.

(a) Upon it becoming necessary to fill a vacancy in the office of Mayor or Council member pursuant to Subsection B(1) above, the City Clerk shall give public notice of the vacancy, containing the qualifications of the office, the geographical boundaries of the district(s) to be represented, the procedure to apply for appointment to the vacancy or to be placed on the special election ballot, as appropriate, and the deadline for applications. Applications for appointment shall be forwarded by the Clerk to the Mayor and Council. Applications to be placed on the special election ballot shall be forwarded by the Clerk to the Supervisors of Elections, who shall review the applications for the purpose of determining the qualifications of the candidates. The application shall include a petition in a form satisfactory to the Board of Election Supervisors containing the names, addresses and signatures of not less than 20 registered voters residing in the applicant's district or, in the case of the Mayor, not less than 15 registered voters from each district in the City, indicating support of the applicant's candidacy. The applicant's name and signature may appear and be counted toward the required number on any such petition. Any candidate wishing to withdraw [~~his or her~~] AN application must do so no later than noon on the [~~11~~th] 20TH calendar day before the election.

(b) – (c) * * * *

C. * * * *

Section 3. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the City of College Park that Article IV, “Voting and Elections”, §C4-5, “Petitions for candidacy; employees” be repealed, re-enacted and amended to read as follows:

§ C4-5 Petitions for candidacy; employees.

- A. Any qualified person desiring to run for the office of Mayor of the City shall file, or cause to be filed, with the City Clerk a petition for candidacy containing the petition, including name, address, district and signature of at least 80 persons consisting of not less than 20 qualified voters from each of the four councilmanic districts. The candidate's name and signature may appear and be counted toward the required number on any such petition.
- B. Any qualified person desiring to run for Councilperson from a district shall file, or cause to be filed, a petition for candidacy with the City Clerk containing the petition,

including name, address, district and signature, of at least 25 qualified voters in the candidate's district. The candidate's name and signature may appear and be counted toward the required number on any such petition.

- C. To qualify as a candidate for any elective office of the City, an individual must also file a written authorization of candidacy with the City Clerk on behalf of the Supervisors of Elections that is signed and dated by the candidate and identifies the office sought, and any financial disclosure statements required under the City's Code of Ethics. In the event that petitions and authorizations are filed by or in behalf of any person for both the office of Mayor and Council member, the candidacy for both offices shall be disqualified unless the candidate delivers a signed, written notice to the City Clerk, stating the office for which the individual will be a candidate, on or before ~~[46 days, including Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays,]~~ 53 CALENDAR DAYS prior to the election.
- D. City employees who seek to qualify as a candidate are required to take an unpaid leave of absence upon the filing of the petition of candidacy for City elective office. The unpaid leave of absence shall be terminated upon withdrawal of the candidate's petition or loss in the election for City office, whichever event shall first occur. Any City employee who gains City elective office shall be terminated as a City employee upon the assumption of office.
- E. No candidacy petitions or authorizations shall be considered valid unless received by the City Clerk before 4:00 p.m. ~~[on the 46th day, including Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays,]~~ 53 CALENDAR DAYS prior to the election. In the event that no qualified candidate files for the office of Mayor or one or more Council seats on or before the ~~[46th]~~ 53RD day prior to the election as required herein, then the deadline for receipt of candidate petitions and authorizations by the City Clerk is extended to 4:00 p.m. on the ~~[36th]~~ 46TH day prior to the election. No candidacy petitions or authorizations for an individual shall be considered valid unless that individual possesses all the required qualifications for the office sought by said date.
- F. The Supervisors of Elections shall cause to be published, in appropriate manner to give general publicity, the names of the candidates and the positions to which they aspire. Any candidate wishing to withdraw an authorization of candidacy must do so no later than 35 CALENDAR days ~~[, including Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays,]~~ prior to the day of election.

Section 4. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the City of College Park that Article IV, "Voting and Elections", §C4-6, "Runoff elections" be repealed, re-enacted and amended to read as follows:

§ C4-6 Runoff elections.

In the event of a tie vote in the election of Mayor and/or Council member, a runoff election of the tied candidates shall be conducted on ~~[the fourth Tuesday after the election]~~ A DATE TO BE DETERMINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL, BY MOTION, THAT IS NO MORE THAN 45 DAYS FROM THE DATE OF

CERTIFICATION OF THE ELECTION. [~~If, due to the date of a special election, a runoff election would occur on a City, state, county or federal election day or holiday, t~~]
 The runoff election shall be scheduled on a date THAT IS NOT A CITY, STATE, COUNTY OR FEDERAL ELECTION DAY OR HOLIDAY. [~~during the 4th week following that special election, such that it would not fall on the City, state, county, or federal election day or holiday.~~]

Section 5. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the City of College Park that this Charter Resolution was introduced on the 23rd day of **February**, 2021 and was considered for adoption after a public hearing. It is adopted as amended this 23rd day of **March**, 2021, after at least 21 days of prior public notice of the public hearing and shall be and become effective upon the fiftieth (50th) day after its passage by the City unless petitioned to referendum in accordance with §4-304 of the Local Government Article, Annotated Code of Maryland within forty (40) days following its passage. A complete and exact copy of this Amended Charter Resolution shall be posted in the City offices located at 8400 Baltimore Avenue, Suite 375, College Park, Maryland for forty (40) days following its passage by the Mayor and Council and a fair summary of the Charter Resolution shall be published in a newspaper having general circulation in the City not less than four (4) times, at weekly intervals, also within the forty (40) day period following its adoption by the City.

Section 6. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that, within ten (10) days after the Charter Resolution hereby enacted becomes effective, either as herein provided or following referendum, the City Manager for the City of College Park shall send separately, by mail, bearing a postmark from the United States Postal Service, to the Department of Legislative Services, one copy of the following information concerning the Amended Charter Resolution: (i) the complete text of this Resolution; (ii) the date of referendum election, if any, held with respect thereto; (iii) the number of votes cast for and against this

Resolution by the Council of the City of College Park or in the referendum; and (iv) the effective date of the Charter Resolution.

Section 7. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager of the City of College Park be, and hereby is, specifically enjoined and instructed to carry out the provisions of Sections 2 and 3 as evidence of compliance herewith; and said City Manager shall cause to be affixed to the minutes of this meeting (i) an appropriate Certificate of Publication of the newspaper in which the fair summary of the Charter Resolution shall have been published; and (ii) shall further cause to be completed and executed the Municipal Charter or Annexation Resolution Registration Form.

Section 8: BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that if any provision of this Charter Resolution or the application thereof to any person or circumstance is held invalid for any reason, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions or any other application of this Charter Resolution which can be given effect without the invalid provisions or application, and to this end, all the provisions of this Resolution and of the Charter are hereby declared to be severable.

INTRODUCED by the Mayor and Council of the City of College Park at a regular meeting on the 23rd day of February 2021.

ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the City of College Park at a regular meeting on the 23rd day of March, 2021.

EFFECTIVE the _____ day of _____, 2021.

ATTEST:

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK,

Janeen S. Miller, CMC, City Clerk

By _____
Patrick L. Wojahn, Mayor

**APPROVED AS TO FORM
AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY:**

Suellen M. Ferguson, City Attorney